
 1 

                                APPROVED 
TOWN OF LOUDON 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
MINUTES OF OCTOBER 23, 2014 

 
Vice Chairman Ned Lizotte called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 

 
ROLL CALL 

The following members were present:  Howard Pearl, Roy Merrill, Ned Lizotte, Earl Tuson, and 
alternates George Saunderson and Charlie Aznive.   
Alternate Charlie Aznive was appointed as a voting member in the absence of Dave Powelson. 
Lieutenant John Reese represented the Fire Department. 
 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 

Regular Hearing

 

 – Roy Merrill made a motion to approve the minutes of September 25, 2014 as 
written; seconded by Earl Tuson.  All were in favor.   

NOVEMBER MEETING DATE

 

 – Because Thanksgiving Day falls on the usual meeting date, it was 
agreed to hold the next meeting on Monday, November 24th.   

 
DISCUSSION 

Kim Stevenson & Richard Eamons

 

 – Ms. Stevenson explained that they are here to talk with the 
Board about a driveway permit that was issued for a parcel they recently purchased from Joanne 
Sanborn.  She said having a driveway permit in place was a contingency of the purchase.  Upon 
speaking with Building Inspector Bob Fiske she was told that the driveway permit did not go with the 
land.  Mr. Eamons said they purchased the parcel at 102 Kenney Road on September 18th.  At that 
time they were of the understanding that there was a valid driveway permit for the property.  Donna 
informed the Board of her conversation with Mr. Fiske. The access/frontage is only 47.7’ as agreed to 
with an equitable waiver of dimensional requirements a few years ago.  In her conversation with Mr. 
Fiske, Donna said he felt the new owners would have to apply for a special exception for a reduced 
setback for the driveway.  The Board discussed the situation.  It was stated that the Sanborns had 
used this same driveway/access to their house when they first built years ago, probably even before 
the Ordinance said that driveways could not be in the side setback without a special exception.  They 
later gained access to their house through an easement across the Epp property, no longer using the 
driveway in question.  Because this driveway was in existence long before the sale of the vacant 
parcel and because it is the only access to the vacant parcel, the Board agreed that there was no 
need for Ms. Stevenson and Mr. Eamons to have to apply for a special exception.  

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

Application #Z14-13, Ben Cucci

 Vice Chairman Lizotte went through the points of the application with Mr. Cucci.  On point #6 
Mr. Cucci added that there is an in-ground drainage system already in place so any runoff would go 
to that and stay on his property.  The Board reviewed several pictures of the proposed location and 

 – Special Exception for a reduced side setback, RR District, Map 57, 
Lot 14.  There were no abutters present.  Mr. Cucci explained that he wants to put a lean-to on the 
side of his garage.  It would be open from the side and would have a gravel floor.  The edge of the 
roof would be 23’ from the boundary line of the abutting property.  He said the abutting lot is a five 
acre wooded lot that is quite wet. 



 2 

proximity to the property line.  All were satisfied with the photos and diagrams that Mr. Cucci 
submitted; it was agreed that a site walk was not necessary for this matter.  Hearing no further 
questions from the Board, Mr. Lizotte closed the hearing.  Howard Pearl made a motion to approve 
the request to reduce the 30’ side setback to 23’ as presented; seconded by Roy Merrill.  All 
were in favor.  PASSED 
   
Application #14-14, Inisfree Investments, LLC

Mr. Green presented a revised set of plans to the Board.  He explained that they are asking for 
bulk storage tanks on the property.  He pointed out the existing scale house on the property, noting 
that the proposed tanks would be beyond that.  Mr. Green stated that there would be six 6,000 gallon 
tanks and one 15,000 gallon tank.  He said they would be encased in a concrete containment system, 
as would the loading area.  Mr. Green explained that the access road crosses one lot owned by the 
applicant to get to another lot owned by the applicant where the tanks would be installed.  He said the 
tanks would be 157.6’ from the closest property toward the road and 153.5’ from the side boundary.  
Those measurements are to the corners of the containment area.  Traffic flow would be one-way in 
around the tanks and back out.   

 – Special Exception for bulk storage tanks, RR District, 
Map 11, Lot 12.   Abutters Robert Young, Ed Dempsey, and Kenny-Lynn Dempsey were present.  
Jeff Green represented the applicants.   

Mr. Green said there are currently two trucks for fueling.  There would be up to two tractor 
trailer loads coming in to fill the tanks.  Howard Pearl asked what the intent would be for having that 
much fuel onsite.  He asked if they would be selling heating oil to the public.  Mr. Green said they are 
using a company now to deliver to them and buying bulk would be cheaper.  They are proposing a 
total of 51,000 gallons of storage with 110% containment area.  He said the current trucks come in to 
fill the company’s equipment.  Earl Tuson asked what they are currently putting the fuel in.  Mr. Green 
said they have a 2,800 gallon truck that goes into equipment.  Ned Lizotte asked to clarify that they 
put the fuel into the equipment and then leave.  Mr. Green said that was correct.  Howard Pearl asked 
if this is only for their use.  Roy Merrill said it is too much for their own use. Mr. Green said again that 
there would be a tractor trailer or two weekly instead of the two delivery trucks coming in.  They would 
load some into equipment and some would be going out for delivery to homes.   

Earl Tuson asked where a fuel distribution facility is permitted in the Ordinance.  Mr. Green 
said he did not find that they are permitted anywhere in town.  The discussion continued on who 
would be running the depot, who would be delivering, what the traffic increase might be, and the 
amount of storage being requested.  Mr. Green said he was told that the applicant would run the 
depot and who they buy from would probably do the deliveries.  Charlie Aznive asked if this would be 
a case of leasing storage for some other company.  Mr. Green said it could be.  He said the matter 
came about because of the trucks coming in every day.  He said bulk storage would be easier and 
would allow them to distribute some to make it worthwhile.   

Howard Pearl asked if there would be multiple products. Mr. Green said there will be on-road 
and off-road diesel and heating fuel.  Ned Lizotte asked if there would be gas or propane.  Mr. Green 
said there would not.  Mr. Lizotte asked if this would be considered a distribution center.  Mr. Green 
said he believed it could be considered that.  Howard Pearl said it sounds like they want to have the 
option of going to the pier, buying bulk, and sell the excess not used.  He asked how much fuel would 
be used onsite.  Mr. Green said they currently have a 500 gallon tank for off-road diesel and 2,800 for 
on-road diesel.  He said they need bulk storage.  Charlie Aznive asked if they are actually retailing out 
of the location.  Mr. Green said they are not; they are just bringing it in for onsite use.  George 
Saunderson asked if the applicants want to retail out of there.  Mr. Green said that was correct.   

Ed Dempsey informed the Board that the tanks are already down there, waiting to be used.  
He said there is already a lot of activity in the pit and they are the closest abutter.  Kenny-Lynn 
Dempsey asked why the tanks had to be placed right there instead of back some since it is a huge 
sand pit.  Roy Merrill said he was going to ask the same thing.  Charlie Aznive asked if this is the 
same space used by Brown and Beaton years ago.  Mr. Green said it is not.  Roy Merrill stated that 



 3 

area was near the scale house.  Robert Young said he is not opposed to the request but is wondering 
if they are putting a footprint down for a future business.  He asked that they call it what it is.  Mr. 
Dempsey stated that the applicants logged the area a couple of years ago, and he was told at that 
time that they would not be using this road anymore.  Jeff Green stated that berms have been 
discussed for protection if necessary.  Mr. Young asked if anyone has addressed if there is an aquifer 
out there.  Mr. Green said they know there is groundwater but he is not sure that it has been declared 
as an aquifer.   

Ed Dempsey asked if the tanks would be in-ground or aboveground.  Mr. Green said they 
would be both because they have to have concrete containment.  He said the six vertical tanks would 
be down in the ground.  They are 16’ long and about 10’ would be out of the ground.  The horizontal 
tank would probably be kept level with the tops of the vertical tanks.  Earl Tuson asked what NH DES 
has to say on bulk storage.  Mr. Green said the applicants have not spent the money to do that yet.  
Robert Young asked to clarify that they have purchased the tanks but do not have any approvals yet.  
Mr. Green said the empty tanks are on the ground, not hooked up or in use, and they will not go 
forward until they get approvals here.  Mr. Young said having the tanks and a plan gives the illusion 
that this will all mesh.  Mr. Green said the applicant had the opportunity to get the tanks and is just 
storing them there for now.  Mr. Young did some calculations of the number of trucks coming in, the 
number of pieces of equipment the applicant might have, and the gallons per day that might be used.  
He said a distribution site is a whole different ballgame; he asked that they step up and be straight 
with abutters and the town.  He said he is not overly concerned because they still have to get through 
the state.  Roy Merrill said he feels 100% the same as Mr. Young, and he feels this is very clearly a 
distribution center.  Mr. Young said it is too much fuel for use in that business alone.  Several board 
members agreed.   

Vice Chairman Lizotte asked if there were any questions from the Board; hearing none he 
asked Mr. Green to go through the points of the application. On point #2 Charlie Aznive said it would 
seem to change if a distribution center.  Mr. Green said there would be a tractor trailer coming in and 
there are currently one to two trucks in and out so it will add some traffic.  He said the entryway is 
designed for trucks.  On point #3 Howard Pearl said there is nothing in the Zoning Ordinance that 
allows for distribution from this site. George Saunderson said it would be different if it was in the 
commercial zone.  Roy Merrill said the parcel is kind of grandfathered commercial.  Earl Tuson 
pointed out that sand and gravel excavation is permitted in the RR District.  He said there were some 
non-conforming uses on the property that have been abandoned.  Mr. Merrill said it is taxed as 
commercial.  Howard Pearl said the ZBA can approve the tanks but he wondered if it will get through 
the Planning Board.  Jeff Green said they will have to figure that out once they know the tanks are 
approved.  He said part of the plan is to take it step by step.  Roy Merrill said they could do a site walk 
and decide if they approve the tanks.  On point #4 John Reese stated that there is a huge increase in 
potential demand on municipal services as compared to what is there now.  He said the department 
would get fire marshal review of the proposal.  Mr. Reese said HazMat, DES, etc would devise a plan 
whether it is distribution or storage.  He told Mr. Green that the applicants will have to meet with the 
fire department directly.   

Mrs. Dempsey asked if this use will affect their property values.  It was suggested that she 
speak with a realtor for that information.  George Saunderson said it would not seem that a site walk 
would hold up the process since they are just in the beginning stages.  Mr. Green said he has 
suggested to the owners that they try for a conditional approval tonight or maybe continue this and do 
a joint site visit with the Planning Board as they will be applying to them as well.  A site visit was 
scheduled for November 6, 2014 at 4:00 p.m.  Earl Tuson made a motion to continue the hearing 
to the site walk on November 6th at 4:00 p.m. and then to the next meeting on November 24th at 
7:00 p.m. at the Community Building; seconded by Howard Pearl.  All were in favor.  There will 
be no further notification.   

Robert Young said as an abutter the concept of storage is okay but the owners need to be 
conscientious.  He noted that they have been building more residences on the frontage and he feels 



 4 

there will be more.  He would like them to put their cards on the table, be forthcoming, and do the 
right thing. 
  

     
BOARD DISCUSSION 

 Board members were informed that zoning amendments will be discussed at a workshop on 
Thursday, November 20th at 6:00 p.m.  Any suggested amendments should be submitted to the office 
prior to that date. 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

Roy Merrill made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:17 p.m.; seconded by Howard Pearl.  All were 
in favor. 
 
Submitted by, 
 
 
Donna White 
Administrative Assistant 


